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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

September 18, 2014

To the Honorable Chairman, Members of the Board of Directors of the Roanoke Valley
Resource Authority, and Citizens of the City of Roanoke, the County of Roanoke and the Town
of Vinton, Virginia:

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Roanoke
Valley Resource Authority (Authority) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This audit was
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Specifications for Audits
of Authorities, Boards and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts for the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

This report consists of management’s representations conceming the finances of the Authority.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
the completeness and fairness of the presentations, including all disclosures. Management has
established a comprehensive framework of internal control to provide a reasonable basis to
make these representations. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed
anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that
the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the enclosed financial data is accurate in all material respects and fairly presents the
financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Authority. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Authority’s financial activities
have been included.

The basic financial statements have been audited by our independent auditors, Robinson,
Farmer, Cox Associates, who have issued an unqualified (clean) opinion on the financial
statements of the Authority for the year ending June 30, 2014. The annual audit was conducted
in accordance with professional standards which require that the independent auditors plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute, assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The independent auditors’ report is
located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read
in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (Authority) was established on October 23, 1991, as a
tax exempt political subdivision within the Commonwealth of Virginia to acquire and construct a
regional sanitary landfill and waste collection and transfer station with related treatment
facilities. The charter members are the City of Roanoke (City), County of Roanoke (County)
and the Town of Vinton (Town). The Authority began its operations in 1993.

1020 Hollins Road, NE  Roanoke, Virginia 24012-8011  (540) 857-5050  Fax (540) 857-5056
Web Site: www.rvra.net
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The Authority’s Board of Directors consists of seven members; four are appointed by the
County, two are appointed by the City and one is appointed by the Town. Each member is
appointed for a four year term. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors are normally held
monthly.

The Authority is administered by a Chief Executive Officer (CEQO). The CEO has the direct
supervision of all employees of the Authority, the responsibility for the operation of the landfill
facilities, and the establishment of guidelines for efficient and sound fiscal management.

Residents and businesses in the City, the County and the Town generate 700 tons of waste
every day. These localities created the Authority and joined forces with Norfolk Southern in an
innovative public-private partnership. The Authority owns the Tinker Creek Transfer Station, the
Smith Gap Landfill and the Waste Line Express train. This regional public-private parinership is
the first project in the United States that uses rail as the sole fransportation link between a solid
waste transfer station and a landfill.

Each locality collects its own trash using its own equipment. After collection, refuse trucks
deliver the trash to the Authority’s Tinker Creek Transfer Station in the City. At the Transfer
Station, waste is loaded into specially designed rail cars and covered with watertight lock-down
lids. Each rail car holds 65 tons of waste, making them among the largest on the railroad. At
the end of the day, all waste that has been collected and loaded into the 10-12 rail cars are
transported 33 miles on the Waste Line Express by Norfolk Southern to Smith Gap Station in
the County. Upon arriving at the landfill, the rail cars are uncoupled and positioned for
unloading the following day. The train makes a daily trip to Smith Gap with the loaded cars from
the Transfer Station and returns the same day with empty rail cars from the previous day’s load.
Additional information on this process including a seven minute video may be gleaned by
accessing the Authority’s website at www. RVRA .net.

At Smith Gap Station the rail cars are unloaded using one of the largest rotary tippers in the
world. The rail cars are rotated upside down to remove the waste. The unloading operation
takes place inside the tipper building, where the waste is inspected and loaded into haul trucks
for burial in a 1,200 acre, environmentally protected landfill disposal area that meets all state
and federal regulations.

Budgetary and Accounting Controls

The Authority is required to prepare and submit an annual operating budget to the Charter
Members for approval on or before April 1 of each year for the upcoming fiscal year (July 1 to
June 30). The budget is prepared by staff of the Authority and serves as the foundation for the
Authority’s financial planning and control.

The Authority’s accounting records are maintained on an accrual basis under which revenues
are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Accounting
functions are separated to the extent possible for a small sized staff. The County of Roanoke
currently is the fiscal agent for the Authority. The accounting system the Authority is using
belongs to the County and County staff has provided support and assistance to the Authority in
its accounting operations.



Local Economy

The Authority draws from a regional labor force of approximately 300,000 within a radius of sixty
miles. For 2014, the City’s estimated population is 98,913 the County’s estimated population is
92,703 and the Town’s population is estimated to be 8,151.

The Roanoke Valley as well as the surrounding communities, are fortunate that their economic
indicators are more favorable compared to some of the neighboring localities and fo the
State, but they remain formidable challenges for the Roanoke Valley; not only in the delivery
of local government and authority services, but also in maintaining our traditionally high
standard of living and quality of life.

The City, County and Town’s Economic Development Departments successfully utilize
provisions under the public/private partnership policy that allows businesses to receive
assistance from them for qualifying facility expansions and relocations. The expected return on
investment in new taxes and employment is a critical measure governing the use of public funds
to assist businesses and industries.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The Authority annually reviews the adequacy of the Replacement Reserve Requirements under
the current operating conditions, and in comparison with industry standards. The review is done
in consultation with a professional engineer familiar with solid waste services, equipment, and
facilities as utilized by the Authority. A professional consulting engineer, external to the
Authority, reviews the plan every five years. The Authority has defined adequacy to mean that
funds exist in amounts equivalent to or exceeding the anticipated expenditures during a period
of the next five subsequent fiscal years, The Authority annually makes deposits to replacement
reserves for funding future planned expenditures. These reserves allow the Authority to
establish and project an orderly increase in tipping fees to prepare for future expenses along
with annual operating costs. All funds have been determined to be adequate to address
industry costs and planning, thus allowing the reserve funds to reflect future anticipated costs
over the next five years.

The Authority has established a “Closure Fund” to cover its future closure and post-closure
obligations. Maintenance of this fund enables the Authority to qualify for Financial Assurance
using a “Corporate Financial Test,” thereby eliminating the need for additional financial
commitments from its member communities in the form of a “Local Government Financial Test”
or the additional annual cost for a “Letter of Credit” assuring the closure obligations will be met.

Major Initiatives and Accomplishments for FY 2014

e During the year, the Roanoke Valley Resources Authority maintained financial and
reserve policies providing for the establishment of and the planned funding level of
maintenance and improvement reserve accounts for planned expenditures over a short
and long-term planning period.

e The Authority continues to maintain an account for a “Closure Fund” to cover future
closure and post-closure obligations. This fund enables the Authority to qualify for
Financial Assurance by using a “Corporate Financial Test,” thereby eliminating the need



for additional financial commitments from its member communities in the form of a “Local
Govemment Financial Test” or the additional annual cost for a “Letter of Credit’ assuring
the closure obligations will be met. The Authority continues to maintain adequate funds
(cash) to cover anticipated costs required for closure and post closure care of both the
Smith Gap and Rutrough Road landfills.

The Authority continues to maintain and own sufficient land to provide long-term disposal
capacity for its members in excess of one hundred (100) years which is to be developed
in phases or cells. The long-term disposal capacity provides the Authority with the
flexibility it needs to properly evaluate emerging solid waste technologies and to allow
sufficient timing to properly fund and to ultimately transition to one or more of these
technologies if feasible.

Since its inception, the Authority has developed five landfill cells in five construction
phases to-date. The most recent cell, Phase V, was completed April 2009 and was
activated on August 5, 2011. Phase V is projected to provide additional disposal capacity
through 2016 and possibly 2017. Other than the initial Phase |, all funding associated
with the construction of Phases II-V has been cash-funded through an established and
dedicated reserve account which continues to receive regular contributions from the
Authority’s tipping fees to cash-fund subsequent cell developments. The Authority
anticipates this dedicated reserve account will be sufficiently funded such that Phase VI
will also be cash-funded.

Portions of the Smith Gap Landfill are nearing final construction grade and in accordance
with the Authority’s permit, are in the process of being closed. In FY 2009, the Authority’s
professional engineering contractor began developing the design plans required for a
closure permit submittal to the VDEQ. The Authority, in conjunction with its professional
engineering consultant, initially presented an innovative closure design to the VDEQ for
consideration as a Research Design and Development (RDD) project. Ultimately, the
RDD concept was replaced with a newly engineered geosynthetic capping system. |If
approved, the revised cap will prove less costly to construct than the prescriptive capping
system, while providing a permanent, more stable construction that would also provide a
high level of environmental protection. The proposed project, as planned and if
approved, would be the first of its kind in the Commonwealth of Virginia and could serve
as a model for subsequent cell closures at Smith Gap and throughout the State.

As part of the original closure plan for the Smith Gap Landfill, the Authority installed an
active gas collection and control system (GCCS) that began operations in April 2011. All
funding for the closure plan, including the GCCS, is funded through an established
reserve account which continues to receive regular contributions from tipping fees that
will continue to fund subsequent cell closure costs. Although the Authority has no
regulatory obligation to install and operate a GCCS, the Authority’'s GCCS is currently
collecting and preventing the annual emissions of approximately 60,000 tons of carbon
dioxide equivalent (COz¢) to the atmosphere, thereby greatly reducing greenhouse gas
emissions. The Authority is a registered member of the California Climate Action
Registry which qualifies the Authority’s destruction of greenhouse gases for emission
credits which can be sold on the open market to help offset the initial cost of installing the
GCCS. Through January 2014, the Authority has received third party validation for
approximately 93,000 tons or emission credits suitable for marketing. The Authority
anticipates selling some or all of its validated credits in FY 2015 thereby creating a new
revenue stream.



e Methane gas is generated as a natural byproduct of decomposing solid waste in an
anaerobic environment such as exists at the Authority’s Smith Gap Landfill. The methane
gas is a natural gas which the Authority has endeavored to utilize in a beneficial manner.
In FY 2014, the Authority awarded a contract to Ingenco Environmental to design, permit,
construct, and operate a landfill gas to energy (LFGE) project. The project is expected to
utilize the methane contained in landfill gas to generate electricity that will be sold
commercially by Ingenco. The Authority will share in revenue proceeds once the system
is operational. The Authority anticipates this project will be operational in FY 2017 which
will create a new revenue stream.

e In FY 2014, the Authority completed a real estate transaction with the Virginia
Department of Transportation for approximately two acres of property located at the
Authority’s Tinker Creek Transfer Station. Proceeds from the sale will be utilized by the
Authority to construct a Residential Service Area (RSA) at the transfer station. The new
RSA will remove residential traffic from the station’s regular tipping fioor which will greatly
minimize the potential for accidents caused by the comingling of commercial & residential
disposal vehicles. Additionally, removing the residential traffic from the tipping floor will
expedite the ingress and egress of municipal and commercial vehicles which will result in
operational savings for the Authority’s members and customers. The Authority projects
the RSA will be operational in FY 2015.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to RVRA for
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. This was the
sixth consecutive year that the authority received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded
a Certificate of Achievement, a govemment must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Cerificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

We would like to express our appreciation and gratitude to the personnel at the Authority and in
the Department of Finance at the County of Roanoke for their dedication and support in
producing this report. Appreciation is also extended to the Authority’s Board of Directors whose
continuing leadership and support is essential to the financial health of the Authority.

Daniel D. Miles Rebecca E. Owens
Chief Executive Officer Treasurer
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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of the Board
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Roanoke, Virginia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Roanoke Valley
Resource Authority, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and Commissions, issued by the
Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the business-type activities of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority, as of June 30, 2014, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the schedule of pension and OPEB funding progress on pages 11-15 and 48 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 2, 2014, on
our consideration of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

ﬂym'ﬂz,, %an.q, 4{ @dam

Blacksburg, Virginia
September 2, 2014
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Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The management discussion and analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the
financial statements of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (the Authority) for the
year ended June 30, 2014. The MD&A represents management's examination and
analysis of the Authority’s financial condition and performance and should be read in
conjunction with the Authority’s basic financial statements which immediately follows this
section.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting
model adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board in their Statement No.
34 Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State
and Local Governments (GASB 34).

Financial Highlights

e The total assets of the Authority exceeded its liabilities as of June 30, 2014 by
$23,018,835 (Net Position). Of this amount, $ 2,159,326 (Unrestricted net Position)
may be used to meet the Authority’s future obligations to citizens and creditors.

e During the year, the Authority’s total revenues were $1,195,600 less than the
$9,680,144 of expenses.

e The Authority had no outstanding debt at June 30, 2014.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

The Authority’s financial report includes three financial statements: the Statement of Net
Position; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Paosition; and the
Statement of Cash Flows. These statements are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated
by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The financial statements provide information about the Authority as a whole using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is the method used by most private-sector
enterprises. In addition to the basic financial statements, the report includes Notes to
the Basic Financial Statements and Required Supplemental Information.

e The Statements of Net Position reports assets and deferred outflows, liabilities
and deferred inflows and the difference between them. The entire equity section is
combined to report total Net Position and displayed in three broad components — net
investment in capital assets; restricted assets; and unrestricted assets.

o The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present
the results of the business activities over the course of the fiscal year and
information about how the Net Position changed during the year. Revenues and
expenses are categorized as either operating or non-operating based upon
definitions provided by GASB’s 33 and 34. Operating revenue consists of tipping
fees and recycling fees. Nonoperating revenues consist of net increase in fair value
of investments, interest income, gains on disposals of property and equipment and
miscellaneous income.
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One of the main goals of these two statements is to report the Authority’s net position
and changes that affected net position during the fiscal year. The change in the
Authority’s net position is one way to measure the Authority’s financial health, or
financial position. Increases and decreases in net position are indicators of whether the
Authority’s financial health is improving or deteriorating. These statements allow readers
to answer the question: “Is the Authority’s financial position, as a whole, better or worse
as a result of the year’s activities?”

e The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents,
resulting from operational, financing, and investing activities. This statement
presents cash receipts and cash disbursement information without consideration of
the earning event, when an obligation arises, or depreciation of capital assets.

Notes to the basic financial statements - The notes to the basic financial statements
provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements
can be found beginning on page 20 of this report.

Financial Analysis of the Authority as a Whole

The following comparative condensed Statement of Net Position provides an analysis of
the change in financial position from the previous fiscal year.

Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the condensed Summary of Net Position:

FY 2014 FY 2013

Current and other assets S 17,319,193 S 16,401,391
Capital assets, net 20,859,509 22,126,898

Total assets 38,178,702 38,528,289
Current liabilities 807,572 2,079,589
Noncurrent liabilities 14,352,295 12,234,265

Total Liabilities 15,159,867 14,313,854
Investment in capital assets 20,859,509 22,126,898
Unrestricted 2,159,326 2,087,537
Total net assets S 23,018,835 S 24,214,435

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority’s
financial position. In the case of the Authority, assets exceed liabilities by $23,018,835
at the close of fiscal year 2014. This is comparable to last year's Net Position of
$24,214,435.

A portion of the Authority’s Net Position, 90.6%, reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g. land, buildings, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets

12-



that are outstanding. The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services to
customers; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The
Authority’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, if applicable,
and it should be noted that the resources needed to repay any debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities.

A portion of the Authority’s Net Position, 9.4%, represents resources that are not subject
to restrictions on how they may be used. This unrestricted remaining balance of net
position may be used to meet the Authority’s ongoing obligations to customers and
creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority was able to report a positive balance in
all categories of net position. The same situation held true for the prior year fiscal year.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The following table shows the revenue and expenses of the Authority:

FY 2014 FY 2013
Revenues
Charges for services 8,125,576 7,890,905
Non-operating Revenues:
Interest income 46,812 42,842
Gain on sale of capital assets 312,156 -
Total revenues 8,484,544 7,933,747
Expenses
Operating expense
Salaries and benefits (1,912,552) (1,869,179)
Landfill closure costs (1,217,034) (2,298,948)
Other operating expenses (4,436,385) (4,048,933)
Depreciation (2,114,173) (2,110,181)

Total expenses

(9,680,144)

(10,327,241)

Change in net position (1,195,600) (2,393,494)
Total net position at beginning of year 24,214,435 26,607,929
Total net position at end of year 23,018,835 24,214,435




The Authority’s total revenues increased over the prior year by 6.9% to $8,484,544
mainly because of a land sale and increased local economic activity. Tipping fees were
higher by 3.0% from the prior year. Interest income increased by 9.3% as a result of
higher investment balances. The expenses for all programs and services decreased by
6.3% in FY 2014. This reduction is due primarily to a large decrease in the accrual
adjustment for estimated landfill closure costs. The net amount of the adjustment was
$705,417 compared to $1,892,033 for FY 2013 or a decrease of 62.7%.

Approximately 95.8% of the Authority’s Fiscal Year 2014 revenue is from operating
revenue consisting of tipping fees, and recycling income; 0.5% from non-operating
revenue consisting of interest income. Moreover the sale of 3.1 acres to Virginia
Department of Transportation, and the sale of a fully depreciated rail car mover
generated 3.7% of total revenue are classified also as non-operating. Operational
expenses for FY 2014 account for 100% of total expenses as there was no interest
expense.

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2014, the Authority had invested $20,859,509 net of accumulated
depreciation, in a variety of capital assets including land, landfill development costs,
buildings, and equipment. The Authority’s investment in capital assets for the current
year was $975,535. This investment was composed of one truck, landfill compactor,
railcar mover (track mobile), gas analyzer, and construction in progress initial outlay for a
planned residential service area (adjacent to the Tinker Creek transfer facility).

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 in the
notes to the basic financial statements on page 26. Capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation are illustrated in the following table:

FY 2014 FY 2013
Land $ 1,430,680 $ 1,553,759
Landfill and Rail Access 36,770,591 36,770,591
Transfer Station 6,390,221 6,390,221
Equipment 10,535,694 10,448,660
Construction in progress 86,453 -
Subtotal 55,213,639 55,163,231
Accumulated depreciation (34,354,130) (33,036,333)
Totals $ 20,859,509 $ 22,126,898

14-



Long -Term Debt

At June 30, 2014, the Authority had no bonded debt issues outstanding. Additional
information related to long - term liabilities can be found in Note 4, page 27 in the notes
to the basic financial statements.

Factors Influencing Future Budgets
Key factors that are expected to impact future budgets include:

e Uncertainty regarding the economy

Projected increases in health insurance premiums and retirement contribution rates
assessed by the Virginia Retirement System

Expansion of the open landfill

Estimated landfill closure costs

Renewal and replacement needs; costs of plant and equipment

Closed landfill groundwater monitoring and remediation costs

Interest rates

Energy and fuel costs

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, potential
investors and creditors with a general overview of the Authority’s finances and to
demonstrate accountability for the resources it receives. If you have questions about
this report or need additional financial information, contact the Executive Director,
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority, 1020 Hollins Road, Roanoke, VA 24012, telephone
(540-857-5055), or visit the Authority’s web site at www.rvra.net.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments (note 2)
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Inventory

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments (note 2)
Non-depreciable capital assets (nhote 3)
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation (note 3)

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Exhibit 1
Page 1 of 2

7,403,108
845,312
603,711

7,527
92,107

8,951,765

8,367,428
1,517,133
19,342,376

29,226,937

38,178,702




ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Vouchers payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences, current portion (note 4)
Accrued landfill closure, current portion (note 7)

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences, net of current portion (note 4)
Net OPEB obligation
Accrued landfill closure, net of current portion (note 7)
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

Exhibit 1
Page 2 of 2

258,459
36,383
74,481

438,249

807,572

90,198
101,425
14,160,672

14,352,295

15,159,867

20,859,509
2,159,326

23,018,835

38,178,702




Exhibit 2

ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES

Tipping fees $ 8,073,470
Recycling revenue 39,970
Miscellaneous fees 12,136

Total operating revenues $ 8,125,576

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits $ 1,912,552

Landfill closure and post closure costs (note 7) 1,217,034

Other operating expenses 4,436,385

Depreciation 2,114,173

Total operating expenses $ 9,680,144

Operating income (loss) $ (1,554,568)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income $ 46,812

Gain on the sale of capital assets 312,156

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) $ 358,968

Change in net position $ (1,195,600)

Total net position, beginning of year 24,214,435

Total net position, end of year $ 23,018,835

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows
For Year Ended June 30, 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sales of capital assets
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest income
Purchase of investments
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income(loss) to
net cash provided by (used) operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable
Inventory

Vouchers payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences
Landfill closure liability
Net OPEB obligation

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Exhibit 3

8,184,309
(4,832,253)
(1,891,697)

1,460,359

(975,535)
440,907

(534,628)

44,521
(1,551,333)

(1,506,812)

(581,081)

7,984,189

7,403,108

(1,554,568)

2,114,173

58,733

(3,992)
119,741
2,917
8,063
705,417
9,875

1,460,359




ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
as of June 30, 2014

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

A. Description of Entity

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (the Authority) was established on October 23, 1991 as a
tax exempt political subdivision within the Commonwealth of Virginia to acquire and construct a
regional sanitary landfill and waste collection and transfer station with related treatment
facilities. The charter members are the City of Roanoke (the City), County of Roanoke (the
County) and the Town of Vinton (the Town).

Prior to October 23, 1991, the operations of the Authority were accounted for as an enterprise
fund of the County of Roanoke. As of October 23, 1991, under agreement between the City, the
County and the Town, the County transferred all existing assets and liabilities to the Authority.

Under terms of an agreement with the Roanoke Valley Solid Waste Management Board (the
Management Board), certain assets and liabilities were transferred to the Authority, effective
October 1, 1993. The terms of the agreement call for the Authority to monitor an old landfill site
of the Roanoke Valley Regional Solid Waste Management Board during the postclosure care
period.

B. Basis of Accounting

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority operates as an enterprise fund, and its accounts are
maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when earned, and expenses are recorded as liabilities when incurred, without regard to receipt
or payment of cash. The Authority accrues revenue for services rendered but not yet billed at
the end of the fiscal year.

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with the Authority’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Authority are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses include the
cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

C. Deferred Outflows/Inflows or Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows
of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The Authority does not
have any deferred outflows of resources as of June 30, 2014.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority
does not have any deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2014.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

D. Basic Financial Statements

Since the Authority is only engaged in business-type activities, it is required to present only the
financial statements required for enterprise funds. For the Authority, the basic financial
statements and required supplementary information consist of:

* Management’s Discussion and Analysis

» Enterprise fund financial statements

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Statement of Cash Flows
- Notes to Financial Statements

e Required Supplementary Information

- Schedule of Pension and OPEB Funding Progress

E. Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of gift. Depreciation is computed using the
straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.

Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged to expense as incurred, while major
renewals and replacements are capitalized. Upon the sale or retirement of a capital asset, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation, if applicable, are eliminated from the related
accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in income.

The Authority defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $1,000
and an estimated useful life of at least one year. Assets are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. Equipment, furniture and fixtures are depreciated over three to ten years.
Buildings and structures, including the transfer station, are depreciated over 35 years. Landfill
and rail access assets are depreciated over fifteen to thirty-five years. Landfill cell development
costs are depreciated over the expected life of the cell.

F. Interest on Indebtedness

Interest expense applicable to that portion of indebtedness, the proceeds of which are used to
construct new facilities, is capitalized during the period of construction as part of the cost of
such facilities. Other interest costs of the Authority are treated as nonoperating expenses. No
interest was capitalized during the current or prior fiscal year.

G. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

H.

Investments

Short-term investments consist of investments with original maturities in excess of three months
and a remaining maturity of less than one year and are carried at fair value, which approximates
market. Long-term investments consist of investments with a remaining maturity of greater than
one year and are also carried at fair value, which approximates market. Net unrealized and
realized gains or losses are reflected in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund
net position.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

A budget is prepared for information, fiscal planning purposes, and to provide the basis for
setting user rates. None of the participating entities are required to approve the budget. The
budget is adopted as a planning document and is not a legal control on expenses.

. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Primary
customers consist of the City of Roanoke, County of Roanoke, Town of Vinton and their respective
citizens, and local businesses. Management does not feel that an allowance of balances is
necessary so the direct write off method of accounting for uncollectible accounts is used.

Inventory

Inventory is recorded using the first-in, first-out method (FIFO) and is valued at the lower of cost
or market (net realizable value). Inventory consists of parts and supplies utilized in the daily
operation of the landfill.

Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing its financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 1— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

M.

Net Position

Net position is the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is divided into three components:

e« Net investment in capital assets—consist of the historical cost of capital assets less
accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to
finance those assets plus deferred outflows of resources less deferred inflows of resources
related to those assets.

o Restricted —consist of assets that are restricted by the Authority's creditors (for example,
through debt covenants), by the state enabling legislation (through restrictions on shared
revenues), by grantors (both federal and state), and by other contributors.

» Unrestricted—all other net position is reported in this category.

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net
position at face value, net of any applicable premiums and discounts.

Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences consists of unpaid accumulated vacation and sick leave
balances. The liability is based on the sick leave and the vacation leave accumulated at June 30.
Limited vacation and sick leave may be accumulated until retirement or termination.
Accumulated sick leave is paid at a fixed daily rate and accumulated vacation is paid at the
employee’s current wage upon retirement or termination.

. Accrued Landfill Closure

Accrued landfill closure represents the estimated liability for closure and postclosure costs for
the landfill sites. This includes the cost of any equipment and facilities to be installed near or
after the date of landfill closure for purposes of closure, the cost of landfill capping, and the cost
of monitoring and maintaining the sites during the postclosure period. A total estimate of these
expenses is made and updated on a periodic basis and expenses are charged to current period
usage of the landfill site. Current cost of landfill closure and postclosure care is an estimate and
subject to change resulting from inflation, deflation, technology, or changes in applicable laws or
regulations.

Funding Requirements

The City, County and the Town are responsible for their pro rata share, based on population, of
any year-end operating deficit or capital expenditures, if additional funding is required. The
Authority is responsible for paying all outstanding debt.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

R. Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the Authority will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.
restricted bond and grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted - net position and unrestricted - net position in the financial
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the Authority’s policy to consider restricted - net position to have
been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied.

Note 2—Deposits and Investments:

Deposits - The County of Roanoke maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by
all County funds, component units and entities for which the County is the fiscal agent. The
Authority participates in this pool and at June 30, 2014, the carrying value of the Authority’s
deposits with banks and savings institutions was $7,403,108. Deposits with banks are covered by
Federal depository insurance and collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public
Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia. Under the Act, banks and savings
institutions holding public deposits in excess of the amount insured by the FDIC must pledge
collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board. Financial Institutions may choose
between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that choice, will pledge collateral
that ranges in the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits. Accordingly, all deposits are
considered fully collateralized.

Investments - Statutes authorize local governments and other public bodies to invest in obligations of
the United States or agencies thereof, obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political
subdivisions thereof, obligations of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development
(World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, “prime quality”
commercial paper and certain corporate notes, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements, and
the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

Information related to the County of Roanoke pooled account is presented in the audited financial
statements of the County of Roanoke and can be obtained from the Director of Finance, County of
Roanoke, 5204 Bernard Drive, Suite 300E, Roanoke, Virginia 24018; telephone 540-772-2020 or visit
the County’s web site at www.roanokecountyva.gov.

Custodial Credit Risk (Investments)

The Authority’s investment policy provides that securities purchased for the Authority shall be held
by the Authority Treasurer or by the Treasurer’s custodian. If held by a custodian, the securities
must be in the Authority’s name or in the custodian’s nhame and identifiable on the custodian’s books
as belonging to the Authority. Further, if held by a custodian, the custodian must be a third party,
not a counterparty (buyer or seller) to the transaction. At June 30, 2014 all of the Authority’s
investments were held in accordance with this policy.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 2—Deposits and Investments: (Continued)

Credit Risk of Debt Securities

The Authority’s investment policy for credit risk is consistent with the investments allowed by
statute as detailed above.

The Authority’s rated debt investments as of June 30, 2014 were rated by Standard & Poor’s and the
ratings are presented below using the Standard & Poor’s rating scale.

Authority's Rated Debt Investments' Values

Fair Quality Ratings

Rated Debt Investments AAA

Roanoke County Treasurer's

Investment Pool S 9,212,740
Total S 9,212,740

Rating allocations presented above for the Roanoke County Investment Pool are based on ratings of
the individual investments held in the pool and amounts reported under each rating level are
prorated based on the Authority’s percentage of funds invested in the pool.

Interest Rate Risk

The Authority’s policy with regard to interest rate risk requires that all investments mature within
five years of their purchase date. The policy further requires maturity scheduling be timed to
anticipated need and scheduled to coincide with projected cash flow needs. All funds shall be
considered short-term except those reserved for capital projects. Investment maturities presented
below are based on the maturity dates for individual investments held within the pool as allocated
based on the Authority’s percentage of funds invested in the pool.

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value 1 Year 1-5 Years
Roanoke County Investment Pool S 9,212,740 S 845,312 § 8,367,428
Totals S 9,212,740 § 845,312 § 8,367,428

The fair value of the positions in the external investment pools (Roanoke County Investment Pool) is
the same as the value of the pool shares. As the Roanoke County Investment Pool is not SEC
registered, regulatory oversight of the pool rests with the Roanoke County Board of Supervisors.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 3—Capital Assets:

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,553,759 § - S 123,079 $ 1,430,680
Construction in Progress - 86,453 - 86,453
Total capital assets not being depreciated S 1,553,759 § 86,453 S 123,079 $§ 1,517,133
Capital assets being depreciated:
Landfill and Rail Access S 36,770,591 S - S - S 36,770,591
Transfer Station (Building and Structure) 6,390,221 - - 6,390,221
Equipment 10,448,660 889,082 802,048 10,535,694
Total capital assets being depreciated S 53,609,472 § 889,082 S 802,048 S 53,696,506
Accumulated depreciation:
Landfill and Rail Access S 21,267,244 § 1,235,702 § - S 22,502,946
Transfer Station (Building and Structure) 4,006,505 158,914 - 4,165,419
Equipment 7,762,584 719,557 796,376 7,685,765
Total accumulated depreciation S 33,036,333 § 2,114,173 § 796,376 S 34,354,130
Total capital assets being depreciated, net S 20,573,139 S§ (1,225,091) $ 5,672 § 19,342,376
Total capital assets, net S 22,126,898 S (1,138,638) S 128,751 $§ 20,859,509

This space left blank intentionally



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 4—Long-Term Liabilities:

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year are as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014  One Year
Compensated Absences $ 156,616 $ 89,772 $ 81,709 $ 164,679 $ 74,481
Accrued Landfill Closure
and Postclosure (Note 8) 13,893,504 1,217,034 511,617 14,598,921 438,249
Net OPEB Obligation 91,550 30,413 20,538 101,425 -
$ 14,141,670 $ 1,337,219 $ 613,864 $ 14,865,025 $ 512,730

All liabilities are liquidated by operating funds.

Details of the Authority's outstanding long-term liabilities at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Liabilities
Compensated Absences

Accrued landfill closure and postclosure

Net OPEB Obligation
Total

Due Within

Total One Year
$ 164,679 $ 74,481
14,598,921 438,249
101,425 -
$ 14,865,025 $ 512,730

This space left blank intentionally



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 5—Pension Plans:

A. Plan Description

Name of Plan: Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
Identification of Plan:  Agent and Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Pension Plan
Administering Entity: Virginia Retirement System (System)

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority contributes, through the County of Roanoke, Virginia, to
the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). All full-time, salaried permanent (professional) employees
of public school divisions and employees of participating employers are automatically covered by
VRS upon employment. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are
employed and they and their employer are paying contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to
purchase prior public service, active duty military service, certain periods of leave and previously
refunded VRS service as service credit in their plan.

Within the VRS Plan, the System administers three different benefit plans for local government
employees - Plan 1, Plan 2, and, Hybrid. Each plan has different eligibility and benefit structures
as set out below:

VRS - PLAN 1

1. Plan Overview - VRS Plan 1 is a defined benefit plan. The retirement benefit is based on a
member’s age, creditable service and average final compensation at retirement using a
formula. Employees are eligible for VRS Plan 1 if their membership date is before July 1,
2010, and they were vested as of January 1, 2013.

2. Eligible Members - Employees are in VRS Plan 1 if their membership date is before July 1,
2010, and they were vested as of January 1, 2013.

3. Hybrid Opt-In Election - VRS non-hazardous duty covered Plan 1 members were allowed to
make an irrevocable decision to opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan during a special election
window held January 1 through April 30, 2014.

The Hybrid Retirement Plan’s effective date for eligible VRS Plan 1 members who opted in
was July 1, 2014.

If eligible deferred members returned to work during the election window, they were also
eligible to opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan.

Members who were eligible for an optional retirement plan (ORP) and had prior service under
VRS Plan 1 were not eligible to elect the Hybrid Retirement Plan and remain as VRS Plan 1 or
ORP.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

VRS - PLAN 1 (CONTINUED)

4, Retirement Contributions - Members contribute up to 5% of their compensation each month
to their member contribution account through a pre-tax salary reduction. Some school
divisions and political subdivisions elected to phase in the required 5% member contribution;
all employees will be paying the full 5% by July 1, 2016. Member contributions are tax-
deferred until they are withdrawn as part of a retirement benefit or as a refund. The
employer makes a separate actuarially determined contribution to VRS for all covered
employees. VRS invests both member and employer contributions to provide funding for the
future benefit payment.

5. Creditable Service - Creditable service includes active service. Members earn creditable
service for each month they are employed in a covered position. It also may include credit
for prior service the member has purchased or additional creditable service the member was
granted. A member’s total creditable service is one of the factors used to determine their
eligibility for retirement and to calculate their retirement benefit. It also may count toward
eligibility for the health insurance credit in retirement, if the employer offers the health
insurance credit.

6. Vesting - Vesting is the minimum length of service a member needs to qualify for a future
retirement benefit. Members become vested when they have at least five years (60 months)
of creditable service. Vesting means members are eligible to qualify for retirement if they
meet the age and service requirements for their plan. Members also must be vested to
receive a full refund of their member contribution account balance if they leave employment
and request a refund.

Members are always 100% vested in the contributions that they make.

7. Calculating the Benefit - The Basic Benefit is calculated based on a formula using the
member’s average final compensation, a retirement multiplier and total service credit at
retirement. It is one of the benefit payout options available to a member at retirement.

An early retirement reduction factor is applied to the Basic Benefit if the member retires
with a reduced retirement benefit or selects a benefit payout option other than the Basic
Benefit.

8. Average Final Compensation - A member’s average final compensation is the average of the
36 consecutive months of highest compensation as a covered employee.

9. Service Retirement Multiplier - The retirement multiplier is a factor used in the formula to
determine a final retirement benefit. The retirement multiplier for non-hazardous duty
members is 1.7%. The retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regional jail superintendents is
1.85%. The retirement multiplier of eligible political subdivision hazardous duty employees
other than sheriffs and regional jail superintendents is 1.7% or 1.85% as elected by the
employer.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

VRS - PLAN 1 (CONTINUED)

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Normal Retirement Age - Age 65.

Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility - Members who are not in hazardous duty
positions are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at age 65 with at least five years
(60 months) of creditable service or at age 50 with at least 30 years of creditable service.

Hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at age 60 with at
least five years of creditable service or age 50 with at least 25 years of creditable service.

Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibility - Members may retire with a reduced benefit as
early as age 55 with at least five years (60 months) of creditable service or age 50 with at
least 10 years of creditable service.

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement - The Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA)
matches the first 3% increase in the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U)
and half of any additional increase (up to 4%) up to a maximum COLA of 5%.

Eligibility - For members who retire with an unreduced benefit or with a reduced benefit
with at least 20 years of creditable service, the COLA will go into effect on July 1 after one
full calendar year from the retirement date.

For members who retire with a reduced benefit and who have less than 20 years of
creditable service, the COLA will go into effect on July 1 after one calendar year following
the unreduced retirement eligibility date.

Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates - The COLA is effective July 1 following one full
calendar year (January 1 to December 31) under any of the following circumstances:

¢ The member is within five years of qualifying for an unreduced retirement benefit as of
January 1, 2013.

o The member retires on disability.

e The member retires directly from short-term or long-term disability under the Virginia
Sickness and Disability Program (VSDP).

e The member is involuntarily separated from employment for causes other than job
performance or misconduct and is eligible to retire under the Workforce Transition Act or
the Transitional Benefits Program.

e The member dies in service and the member’s survivor or beneficiary is eligible for a

monthly death-in-service benefit. The COLA will go into effect on July 1 following one
full calendar year (January 1 to December 31) from the date the monthly benefit begins.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

VRS - PLAN 1 (CONTINUED)

16.

17.

Disability Coverage - Members who are eligible to be considered for disability retirement
and retire on disability, the retirement multiplier is 1.7% on all service, regardless of when it
was earned, purchased or granted.

Most state employees are covered under the Virginia Sickness and Disability Program (VSDP),
and are not eligible for disability retirement.

VSDP members are subject to a one-year waiting period before becoming eligible for non-
work related disability benefits.

Purchase of Prior Service - Members may be eligible to purchase service from previous
public employment, active duty military service, an eligible period of leave or VRS refunded
service as creditable service in their plan. Prior creditable service counts toward vesting,
eligibility for retirement and the health insurance credit. Only active members are eligible
to purchase prior service. When buying service, members must purchase their most recent
period of service first. Members also may be eligible to purchase periods of leave without

pay.

VRS - PLAN 2

Plan Overview - VRS Plan 2 is a defined benefit plan. The retirement benefit is based on a
member’s age, creditable service and average final compensation at retirement using a
formula. Employees are eligible for VRS Plan 2 if their membership date is on or after July 1,
2010, or their membership date is before July 1, 2010, and they were not vested as of
January 1, 2013.

Eligible Members - Employees are in VRS Plan 2 if their membership date is on or after July
1, 2010, or their membership date is before July 1, 2010, and they were not vested as of
January 1, 2013.




ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

VRS - PLAN 2 (CONTINUED)

10.

11.

12.

Hybrid Opt-In Election - VRS Plan 2 members were allowed to make an irrevocable decision
to opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan during a special election window held January 1
through April 30, 2014.

The Hybrid Retirement Plan’s effective date for eligible VRS Plan 2 members who opted in
was July 1, 2014.

If eligible deferred members returned to work during the election window, they were also
eligible to opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan.

Members who were eligible for an optional retirement plan (ORP) and have prior service
under VRS Plan 2 were not eligible to elect the Hybrid Retirement Plan and remain as VRS
Plan 2 or ORP.

Retirement Contributions - Same as VRS Plan 1-Refer to Section 4.

Creditable Service - Same as VRS Plan 1- Refer to Section 5.

Vesting - Same as VRS Plan 1-Refer to Section 6.

Calculating the Benefit - Same as VRS Plan 1-Refer to Section 7.

Average Final Compensation - A member’s average final compensation is the average of
their 60 consecutive months of highest compensation as a covered employee.

Service Retirement Multiplier - Same as Plan1 for service earned, purchased or granted
prior to January 1, 2013. For non-hazardous duty members the retirement multiplier is 1.65%
for creditable service earned, purchased or granted on or after January 1, 2013.

Normal Retirement Age - Normal Social Security retirement age.

Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility - Members who are not in hazardous duty
positions are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit when they reach normal Social
Security retirement age and have at least five years (60 months) of creditable service or
when their age and service equal 90.

Hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at age 60 with at
least five years of creditable service or age 50 with at least 25 years of creditable service.

Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibility - Members may retire with a reduced benefit as
early as age 60 with at least five years (60 months) of creditable service.
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Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

VRS - PLAN 2 (CONTINUED)

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement - The Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA)
matches the first 2% increase in the CPI-U and half of any additional increase (up to 2%), for
a maximum COLA of 3%.

Eligibility - Same as VRS Plan 1-Refer to Section 14.

Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates - Same as VRS Plan 1-Refer to Section 15.

Disability Coverage - Members who are eligible to be considered for disability retirement
and retire on disability, the retirement multiplier is 1.65% on all service, regardless of when
it was earned, purchased or granted.

Most state employees are covered under the Virginia Sickness and Disability Program (VSDP),
and are not eligible for disability retirement.

VSDP members are subject to a one-year waiting period before becoming eligible for non-
work related disability benefits.

Purchase of Prior Service - Same as VRS Plan 1-Refer to Section 17.

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Overview - The Hybrid Retirement Plan combines the features of a defined benefit plan
and a defined contribution plan. Most members hired on or after January 1, 2014 are in this
plan, as well as VRS Plan 1 and VRS Plan 2 members who were eligible and opted into the
plan during a special election window. (See “Eligible Members”)

o The defined benefit is based on a member’s age, creditable service and average final
compensation at retirement using a formula.

e The benefit from the defined contribution component of the plan depends on the
member and employer contributions made to the plan and the investment performance
of those contributions.

¢ In addition to the monthly benefit payment payable from the defined benefit plan at
retirement, a member may start receiving distributions from the balance in the defined
contribution account, reflecting the contributions, investment gains or losses, and any
required fees.
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Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

2.

Eligible Members - Employees are in the Hybrid Retirement Plan if their membership date is
on or after January 1, 2014. This includes:

e State employees*

e School division employees

e Political subdivision employees*

e Judges appointed or elected to an original term on or after January 1, 2014

e Members in VRS Plan 1 or VRS Plan 2 who elected to opt into the plan during the
election window held January 1-April 30, 2014; the plan’s effective date for opt-in
members was July 1, 2014

*Non-Eligible Members - Some employees are not eligible to participate in the Hybrid
Retirement Plan. They include:

e Members of the State Police Officers’ Retirement System (SPORS)
e Members of the Virginia Law Officers’ Retirement System (VaLORS)

e Political subdivision employees who are covered by enhanced benefits for hazardous
duty employees

Those employees eligible for an optional retirement plan (ORP) must elect the ORP plan or
the Hybrid Retirement Plan. If these members have prior service under VRS Plan 1 or VRS
Plan 2, they are not eligible to elect the Hybrid Retirement Plan and must select VRS Plan 1
or VRS Plan 2 (as applicable) or ORP.

Retirement Contributions - A member’s retirement benefit is funded through mandatory
and voluntary contributions made by the member and the employer to both the defined
benefit and the defined contribution components of the plan. Mandatory contributions are
based on a percentage of the employee’s creditable compensation and are required from
both the member and the employer. Additionally, members may choose to make voluntary
contributions to the defined contribution component of the plan, and the employer is
required to match those voluntary contributions according to specified percentages.
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Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

5. Creditable Service

Defined Benefit Component - Under the defined benefit component of the plan, creditable
service includes active service. Members earn creditable service for each month they are
employed in a covered position. It also may include credit for prior service the member has
purchased or additional creditable service the member was granted. A member’s total
creditable service is one of the factors used to determine their eligibility for retirement and
to calculate their retirement benefit. It also may count toward eligibility for the health
insurance credit in retirement, if the employer offers the health insurance credit.

Defined Contribution Component - Under the defined contribution component, creditable
service is used to determine vesting for the employer contribution portion of the plan.

6. Vesting

Defined Benefit Component - Defined benefit vesting is the minimum length of service a
member needs to qualify for a future retirement benefit. Members are vested under the
defined benefit component of the Hybrid Retirement Plan when they reach five years (60
months) of creditable service. VRS Plan 1 or VRS Plan 2 members with at least five years (60
months) of creditable service who opted into the Hybrid Retirement Plan remain vested in
the defined benefit component.

Defined Contribution Component - Defined contribution vesting refers to the minimum length
of service a member needs to be eligible to withdraw the employer contributions from the
defined contribution component of the plan.

Members are always 100% vested in the contributions that they make.

Upon retirement or leaving covered employment, a member is eligible to withdraw a
percentage of employer contributions to the defined contribution component of the plan,
based on service.

o After two years, a member is 50% vested and may withdraw 50% of employer
contributions.

o After three years, a member is 75% vested and may withdraw 75% of employer
contributions.

e After four or more years, a member is 100% vested and may withdraw 100% of employer
contributions.

Distribution is not required by law until age 70%:.
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Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

10.

11.

12.

Calculating the Benefit

Defined Benefit Component - Same as VRS Plan 1-Refer to Section 7.

Defined Contribution Component - The benefit is based on contributions made by the
member and any matching contributions made by the employer, plus net investment earnings
on those contributions.

Average Final Compensation - Same as VRS Plan 2-Refer to Section 8. It is used in the
retirement formula for the defined benefit component of the plan.

Service Retirement Multiplier - The retirement multiplier is 1.0%.

For members that opted into the Hybrid Retirement Plan from VRS Plan 1 or VRS Plan 2, the
applicable multipliers for those plans will be used to calculate the retirement benefit for
service credited in those plans.

Normal Retirement Age

Defined Benefit Component - Same as VRS Plan 2-Refer to Section 10.

Defined Contribution Component - Members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving
employment, subject to restrictions.

Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility

Defined Benefit Component - Members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit when
they reach normal Social Security retirement age and have at least five years (60 months) of
creditable service or when their age and service equal 90.

Defined Contribution Component - Members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving
employment, subject to restrictions.

Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibility

Defined Benefit Component - Members may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60
with at least five years (60 months) of creditable service.

Defined Contribution Component - Members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving
employment, subject to restrictions.
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Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

13. Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement

Defined Benefit Component - Same as VRS Plan 2-Refer to Section 13.

Defined Contribution Component - Not Applicable.

14. Eligibility - Same as VRS Plan 1 and Plan 2- Refer to Section 14.
15. Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates - Same as VRS Plan 1 and Plan 2-Refer to Section 15.

16. Disability Coverage - Eligible political subdivision and school division members (including
VRS Plan 1 and VRS Plan 2 opt-ins) participate in the Virginia Local Disability Program (VLDP)
unless their local governing body provides an employer-paid comparable program for its
members.

State employees (including VRS Plan 1 and VRS Plan 2 opt-ins) participating in the Hybrid
Retirement Plan are covered under the Virginia Sickness and Disability Program (VSDP), and
are not eligible for disability retirement.
Hybrid members (including VRS Plan 1 and VRS Plan 2 opt-ins) covered under VSDP or VLDP
are subject to a one-year waiting period before becoming eligible for non-work related
disability benefits.

17. Purchase of Prior Service

Defined Benefit Component - Same as VRS Plan 1 and VRS Plan 2-Refer to Section 17.

Defined Contribution Component - Not Applicable.

The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of the most
recent report may be obtained from the VRS website at
http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2013-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the
System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.
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Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

B. Funding Policy

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to
contribute 5.00% of their compensation toward their retirement. All or part of the 5.00%
member contribution may be assumed by the employer. Beginning July 1, 2012 new employees
were required to pay the 5% member contribution. In addition, for existing employees,
employers were required to begin making the employee pay the 5% member contribution. This
could be phased in over a period up to 5 years and the employer is required to provide a salary
increase equal to the amount of the increase in the employee-paid member contribution. In
addition, the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority is required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary to fund its participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the Code of
Virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The Authority’s contribution rate for the
fiscal year ended 2014 was 14.01% of annual covered payroll.

This space left blank intentionally
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Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

C. Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2014, the Authority’s annual pension cost of $112,591 was equal to the
Authority’s required and actual contributions.

Three-Year Trend Information for
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (Roanoke County's Plan)

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Cost *  Percentage of APC Net Pension
Ending (APC) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2014  § 112,591 100% S
June 30, 2013 114,847 100%
June 30, 2012 149,643 100%

* Includes employer costs only.

The FY 2014 required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2011 actuarial
valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at June 30, 2011
included (a) an investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) of 7.00%, (b)
projected salary increases ranging from 3.75% to 5.60% per year for general government
employees, 3.75% to 6.20% per year for teachers, and 3.50% to 4.75% for employees eligible for
enhanced benefits available to law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs, and (c) a
cost-of-living adjustment of 2.50% per year for Plan 1 employees and 2.25% for Plan 2
employees. Both the investment rate of return and the projected salary increases include an
inflation component of 2.50%. The actuarial value of the Authority’s assets is equal to the
modified market value of assets. This method uses techniques that smooth the effects of short-
term volatility in the market value of assets over a five-year period. The Authority’s unfunded
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payrolls on an
open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2011 for the Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability (UAAL) was 30 years.

D. Funding Status and Progress

As of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Authority’s plan was 74.19%
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $205,646,784, and the actuarial value of
assets was $152,567,560, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$53,079,224. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$42,427,533 and ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 125.11%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits.
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Note 5-Pension Plans: (Continued)

City of Roanoke Pension Plan

Employees of the Authority who transferred their employment from the City of Roanoke are eligible
to continue their participation in the City’s Pension Plan.

A. Plan Description

The Pension Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan established by City
Council and is included in the City's basic financial statements as a Pension Trust Fund. The
Pension Plan was established by City Ordinance No. 8559 dated May 27, 1946, effective July 1,
1946. Provisions of the pension plan are subject to amendment by City Council. The Pension Plan
covers substantially all employees of the City, all employees of the Roanoke Regional Airport
Commission, and the Roanoke Valley Detention Commission, certain employees of the City of
Roanoke School Board, the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority, and the Western Virginia Water
Authority. The City is the major contributor of employer contributions to the Pension Plan. City
Council appoints members of the Pension Plan Board of Trustees to administer the Pension Plan.
The Pension Plan is not subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
(ERISA) of 1974.

Effective July 1, 1984, the Pension Plan changed its name from the Employees’ Retirement
System of the City of Roanoke, Virginia (ERS) to City of Roanoke Pension Plan. This change
provided for an Employees’ Supplemental Retirement System (ESRS) which modified certain
benefits as defined by the ERS. All employees covered under the provisions of the ERS at June 30,
1984, could elect to remain with the ERS or be covered under the provisions of the ESRS.
Coverage under the ESRS was mandatory for all employees hired or rehired on or after July 1,
1984. On November 28, 1994, June 1, 1998, November 2, 1998, and June 5, 2000, City Council
authorized the Pension Plan to offer members of the ERS an opportunity to transfer to the ESRS.
The option was available from February 1, 1995 to May 16, 1995, July 1, 1998 through August 31,
1998, December 1, 1998 through December 31, 1998, and July 1, 2000 through July 31, 2000.
Both the ERS and the ESRS share a common trust fund from which all benefits are paid without
distinction as to the source of funds and are administered by the Board of Trustees. The Pension
Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.

Employees who are members of the ERS with 30 years of service or age 60 (normal retirement
age) are entitled to an annual benefit equal to 1/70 (1.429%) of their average final salary
compensation (highest consecutive 12 months), excluding overtime, for each year of service.
Employees may retire with 20 years of service and receive a reduced retirement benefit. For
employees who are married at their retirement date, a joint and survivor annuity is payable
monthly. There is no mandatory retirement age.

Employees who are members of the ESRS with 5 years or more of credited service and age 65 or
over, general employees who have attained age 50 with age plus service equal to 80 and police
officers and firefighters who have attained age 45 with age plus service equal to 70, are entitled
to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life in an amount equal to 2.1 percent of
their final average compensation for each year of credited service up to a maximum of 63
percent. Final average compensation is the employee’s average salary, excluding overtime, over
the highest 36 consecutive months of credited service. Employees with 5 years of credited
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Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

City of Roanoke Pension Plan (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

service may retire at age 55 and receive a reduced retirement benefit. Employees may elect to
receive their retirement benefits in the form of a single life annuity or a joint and survivor
annuity payable monthly from retirement. If employees under age 65 terminate before rendering
five years of service they forfeit the right to receive any Pension Plan benefits. There is no
mandatory retirement age.

Effective July 1, 2000, an additional monthly supplement equal to the greater of (a) $159; or (b)
75% of the amount the City contributes toward the cost of a single active employee’s health
insurance shall be paid for eligible retirees until the month in which the retiree attains age 65.
Any member of the City of Roanoke Pension Plan who was an employee of one of the
participating employers of the Plan (not including employees of the City of Roanoke School
Board) and who retired after earning 20 or more years of creditable service but prior to attaining
the age of 65 is eligible for this supplement. This supplement is not available to retirees
receiving the early retiree incentive plan supplement granted in 1991.

The City of Roanoke Pension Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by
writing to the City of Roanoke Retirement Office, Attention: Retirement Administrator, P.O. Box
1220, Roanoke, Virginia 24006.

B. Funding Policy

The Pension Plan is noncontributory for employees. Employer contributions to the Pension Plan
are based on a percentage of the annual compensation of the active members. The City’s
contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 was 18.07% of annual covered payroll.

C. Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2014, the Authority’s annual pension cost of $12,937, was equal to the required
and actual contribution. As stipulated by City Code, the required contribution was determined as
part of the June 30, 2012 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost
method. Any unfunded/(overturned) actuarial liability is amortized using the level percentage of
pay amortization method over a 20-year closed amortization period. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return, (b) projected salary increases of 3.50%, and (c)
cost-of-living adjustments of 1.50%. Projected salary increases include an inflation component of
2.75%. The actuarial value of the assets is determined using a method designed to smooth the
impact of market fluctuations. The actuarial value recognizes annual appreciation and
depreciation over a five-year period. The following information is provided related to trend
information.
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Note 5—Pension Plans: (Continued)

City of Roanoke Pension Plan (Continued)

C. Annual Pension Cost (Continued)

For fiscal year 2014, the Authority’s annual pension cost of $12,937 was equal to the Authority’s
required and actual contributions.

Three-Year Trend Information for
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (Roanoke City's Plan)

Fiscal Year Required * Percentage of Required Net Pension
Ending Contributions Contributions Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2014  § 12,937 100% S
June 30, 2013 11,756 100%
June 30, 2012 18,693 100%

* Includes employer costs only.

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 66.91% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $477,031,913 and the actuarial value of assets was
$319,181,632, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $157,850,281. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $71,001,482, and
ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 222.32%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Note 6—Other Postemployment Benefits:

A. Plan Description

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority administers a single-employer healthcare plan (“the
Plan”). The Plan provides for participation by eligible retirees and their dependents in the health
insurance programs available to employees. The Plan will provide retiring employees the option
to continue health insurance offered by the Authority. Employees are eligible for the program
after ten (10) years of service to the Authority. The benefits, employee contributions, and the
employer contributions are governed by the Authority’s Board and can be amended through Board
action. The Plan does not issue publicly available financial reports.
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Note 6—Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

B. Funding Policy

The contribution requirement of the plan members and the Authority are established and may be
amended by the Authority. The Authority currently pays for post-retirement health care benefits
on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Authority has 28 active employees who are eligible for the
program. Retirees are responsible for the payment of 100% of the health care insurance rates
shown below. The rates were as follows for the 2014 fiscal year:

Monthly RVRA
Participants Premium Contribution
Employee S 519.20 S 469.84
Employee / Spouse 1,064.34 703.14
Employee / One Minor 732.94 504.84
Family 1,246.18 820.32

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Authority is required to compute the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period
not to exceed thirty years.

The following table shows the components of the Authority’s annual OPEB costs for the year, the
amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the net OPEB obligations:

Annual required contribution S 30,319
Interest on net OPEB obligation 3,662
Adjustment to annual required contribution (3,568)

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 30,413
Contributions made (20,538)

Increase in net OPEB obligation 9,875
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 91,550
Net OPEB obligation - ending of year S 101,425
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Note 6—Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for 2014 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage of
Fiscal Annual OPEB Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Year Ended Cost (ARC) Contributed Obligation

6/30/2012 43,155 12.03% 54,594
6/30/2013 45,756 19.23% 91,550
6/30/2014 30,413 67.74% 101,425

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the Plan as of June 30, 2013 (the year of the most recent actuarial
valuation), was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) S 343,350
Actuarial value of plan assets

W

(343,350)

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) S

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0.00%
Covered payroll (active plan members) S 1,276,475

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll -26.90%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far in the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, will present
multiyear trend information, as it becomes available, about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.
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Note 6—Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations. In the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the
Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used. Under this method, future benefits are
projected for life and their present value is determined. The present value is divided into equal
parts, which are earned over the period from the date of hire to the full eligibility date. The
actuarial assumptions for the Authority include:

Assumptions

Amortization period 30 years

Investment rate of return 4%

Health Care Cost Trend Rate 8.00% graded to 5.00% over 7 years
Payroll growth 3.00%

The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar amount over the remaining amortization period,
which at June 30, 2013, was 30 years. Amortizations are open ended in that they begin anew at
each valuation date.

Note 7—Accrued Landfill Closure:

The Authority currently has responsibility for closure and postclosure care related to two landfill
sites and the transfer station. The landfills include the old landfill site formerly owned by the
Roanoke Valley Regional Solid Waste Management Board closed in 1994 and the new Smith Gap
landfill placed in service during 1994. The new landfill has a permitted life of approximately 50
years and remaining life of approximately 38 years. State and Federal laws and regulations require
that the Authority place a final cover on its landfills when closed and perform certain maintenance
and monitoring functions for a minimum of thirty years after closure.

Closure costs will be paid as closure occurs and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after
the date that the landfills stop accepting waste. The Authority reports a portion of these closure and
postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on the landfill capacity of the
existing cells used to date (86% of the constructed cells at June 30, 2014 for the Smith Gap landfill)
and includes anticipated effects of changes in regulations and cost estimates. The total liability
recorded at June 30, 2014, is $14,598,921 and includes $3,791,988 designated for the old landfill
site; $10,689,159 designated for the new Smith Gap landfill; and $117,774 for the Tinker Creek
Transfer station. Total closure and postclosure cost for all opened landfill cells is estimated at
$16,384,477, of which 89.1% has been recognized as noted above based on usage. As such,
$1,785,556 or 10.9% of the total estimated liability will be recognized in future periods as the usage
percentage increases. For the year ending June 30, 2014, the Authority’s liability for closure and
postclosure care increased as a result of a decrease in estimated closure costs.
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Note 7—Accrued Landfill Closure: (Continued)

The Authority will periodically update these closure and postclosure cost estimates and, as
necessary, make revisions to reflect any significant changes in estimates due to inflation or
deflation, technology, or changes in applicable laws and regulations.

Closure and postclosure care requirements are mandated under the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) rule, “Solid Waste Disposal Facility Criteria”, and are subject to periodic
revisions by the EPA.

Federal and state regulations require owners of municipal solid waste landfills to demonstrate
financial responsibility for closure care, postclosure care and corrective costs arising from the
operations of such facilities. The Authority has demonstrated financial assurance requirements for
closure and postclosure care through the submission of a Local Government Financial Test to the
Virginia Department of Environmental Quality in accordance with Section 9VAC20-70 of the Virginia
Administrative Code.

Note 8—Risk Management:

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and others; and natural disasters. The
Authority participates with other localities in the Virginia Municipal Group Self Insurance public
entity risk pool and the Virginia Association of Counties Risk Pool for certain coverage noted below.
Each member of these risk pools jointly and severally agrees to assume, pay and discharge any
liability. The Authority pays the risk pools contributions and assessments based upon classifications
and rates into designated cash reserve funds out of which expenses of the pools, claims and awards
are to be paid. In the event of a loss, deficit, or depletion of all available funds and/or excess
insurance, each pool may assess all members in the proportion to which the premium of each bears
to the total premiums of all members in the year in which such deficit occurs. The Authority carries
insurance coverage for all other risk of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded coverage in the
current or prior two fiscal years.

Worker’s Compensation - Worker’s Compensation Insurance is provided through the Virginia Municipal
Group Self Insurance Association. During 2013-14, the total premiums paid were $39,210. Benefits are
those afforded through the State of Virginia as outlined in the Code of Virginia Section 65.2-100;
premiums are based upon covered payroll, job rates and claims experience.

General Liability and Other - The Authority carries general liability, machinery, property and other
insurance through policies administered by the Virginia Association of Counties Risk Pool.  General
liability and business automobile have a $2,000,000 combined single limit. Machinery coverage and
property insurance are covered as per statement of values. Public officials’ liability with a $1,000,000
limit is covered through a policy with the Commonwealth of Virginia. Total premiums paid for year
ended June 30, 2014 were $36,391.

Healthcare - Healthcare insurance coverage is provided to Authority employees through Roanoke
County’s self-insured health insurance program. The Authority’s employees pay a monthly amount
based upon estimates from the claims processor that should cover administrative expenses, stop loss
insurance premiums, and claims. An excess coverage insurance policy covers each individual’s pooled
claims in excess of $200,000. The Authority has no claims payable as of June 30, 2014.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2014 (Continued)

Note 9—Commitments, Contingencies, and Other Information:

Under terms of a transportation contract, a rail carrier will haul waste for a predetermined
transportation charge to be adjusted on an annual basis. The contract will expire June 30, 2018, and
the Authority has the option to renew the contract for an additional five year period. Expenditures
under this contract were approximately $1,935,012 for the year ended June 30, 2014.

From time to time the Authority is involved in litigation in the normal course of operations. It is the
opinion of the Authority’s management that any adverse outcomes related to litigation would not
have a material impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Authority as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2014.

Note 10—Related Party Transactions:

The following table summarizes approximate tipping fees received and accounts receivable from
charter members as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014:

Tipping Fees Accounts Receivable
2014 2014
City of Roanoke S 1,966,115 S 165,074
County of Roanoke 1,833,977 156,817
Town of Vinton 162,818 13,594
S 3,962,910 S 335,485

Note 11—Arbitrage Rebate Compliance:

As of June 30, 2014 and for the year then ended, the Authority was not liable for any amounts due
under current rules governing arbitrage earnings.

Note 12-New Accounting Standards:

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions. Statement No. 68 will require governments with defined benefit
pension plans to disclose a “net pension liability” on their statement of net position. That liability
equals the difference between the total pension liability and the value of assets set aside in a
pension plan to pay benefits. The statement calls for immediate recognition of more pension expense
than is currently required. This includes immediate recognition of annual service cost and interest on
the pension liability, plus the effect of changes in benefit terms on the net pension liability. This
standard will be effective for the Authority’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. The Authority
believes the implementation of Statement No. 68 will significantly impact the Authority’s net
position; however, no formal study or estimate of the impact of this standard has been performed.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PENSION FUNDING PROGRESS FOR PENSION PLANS AND OPEB

Roanoke County Virginia Retirement System:

Unfunded
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Valuation Actuarial Value of Actuarial Accrued Accrued Funded Percent of
Date Assets Liability (AAL) Liability Ratio Covered Payroll  Covered Payroll
June 30, 2011 $ 147,601,240 $ 192,861,101 $ 45,259,861 76.53% $ 39,118,350 115.70%
June 30, 2012 147,632,836 199,363,060 51,730,224 74.05% 38,646,382 133.86%
June 30, 2013 152,567,560 205,646,784 53,079,224 74.19% 42,427,533 125.11%
Information reported above is for the entire retirement plan which includes Roanoke County and several other legally
separate entities. The System does not segregate plan assets or liabilities for organizations, such as the Roanoke Valley
Resource Authority, that participate through a host entity.
City of Roanoke Pension Plan:
Unfunded
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Valuation Actuarial Value of Actuarial Accrued Accrued Funded Percent of
Date Assets Liability (AAL) Liability Ratio Covered Payroll  Covered Payroll
June 30, 2011 $ 332,786,061 $ 385,628,366 $ 52,842,305 86.30% $ 71,940,995 73.45%
June 30, 2012 320,455,993 393,558,477 73,102,484 81.43% 70,655,778 103.46%
June 30, 2013 319,181,632 477,031,913 157,850,281 66.91% 71,001,482 222.32%
Information reported above is for the entire retirement plan which includes Roanoke City and several other legally
separate entities. The System does not segregate plan assets or liabilities for organizations, such as the Roanoke Valley
Resource Authority, that participate through a host entity.
OPEB Healthcare Plan:
Unfunded
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Valuation Actuarial Value of Actuarial Accrued Accrued Funded Percent of
Date* Assets Liability (AAL) Liability Ratio Covered Payroll  Covered Payroll
June 30, 2009 $ -3 676,745 $ 676,745 0.00% $ 1,134,024 59.68%
June 30, 2011 - 426,392 426,392 0.00% 1,215,681 35.07%
June 30, 2013 - 343,350 343,350 0.00% 1,276,475 26.90%
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Statistical Section

This part of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s comprehensive annual financial
report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the
information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the Authority’s overall financial health.

Contents
Financial Trends
Page
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 49-50
how the Authority’s financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors 51-56
affecting the Authority’s ability to generate its operating revenue.
Debt Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 57-58
affordability of the Authority’s current levels of outstanding debt and the
Authority’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 59-60
reader understand the environment within which the Authority’s financial
activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with
other authorities.
Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the Authority’s operations and 61-62

resources to help the reader understand how the Authority’s financial
information relates to the services the Authority provides and the
activities it performs.
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Roanoke Valley Resource Authority

Annual Tonnage Receivec

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited)

(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 6

Fiscal Municipal Commercial Private Residential Total
Year Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage
2014 85,773 39,022 26,758 9,020 160,573
2013 92,824 37,399 24,508 10,076 164,807
2012 87,373 34,518 21,142 9,473 152,506
2011 88,183 35,312 23,592 8,796 155,883
2010 91,473 38,637 24,687 9,119 163,916
2009 92,935 34,294 25,649 9,579 162,457
2008 98,386 34,824 31,158 9,114 173,482
2007 99,980 34,114 42,215 8,550 184,859
2006 101,563 26,543 33,330 8,448 169,884
2005 101,958 19,660 25,204 9,122 155,944

Source: RVRA reports provided by staff



Table 7
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Principal Customers
(unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)

FY 2014 FY 2005
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
Amount of Total Amount of Total

Roanoke City $ 1,966,115 24.20% $ 2,381,314 31.31%
Roanoke County 1,833,977 22.57% 1,921,265 25.26%
Waste Management 904,136 11.13% 853,450 11.22%
Town of Vinton 162,818 2.00% 180,382 2.37%
Subtotal largest customers 4,867,046 59.90% 5,336,411 70.16%
Balance From other Customers 3,258,530 40.10% 2,269,510 29.84%
Grand Totals $ 8,125,576 100.00% $ 7,605,921 100.00%

Source: RVRA reports provided by staff



Table 8
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Disposal Fees Per Ton
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Municipal Commercial Private Residential
Year Rate Rate Rate Rate

2014 % 48.00 $ 58.00 $ 58.00 $ 48.00
2013 47.00 57.00 57.00 47.00
2012 45.00 55.00 55.00 45.00
2011 45.00 55.00 55.00 45.00
2010 45.00 55.00 55.00 45.00
2009 45.00 55.00 55.00 45.00
2008 45.00 55.00 55.00 45.00
2007 45.00 55.00 55.00 45.00
2006 45.00 55.00 55.00 45.00
2005 45.00 55.00 55.00 45.00

Source: RVRA Budget Book



‘spouad Juanbasgns Aue 1o} pue TTOZ ‘0 aunc Jo se BuipueisINo Spuog anuaAal Aue aAey 10U pip ALoYINy a8yl 810N

AlIoYIny 821n0say Ad||eA 9y0ur0y Sluawalels [eloueUl palipny
sisAleuy 21LWOU09T JO Nealng Yyl WoJj elep awodu| [euosiad pue uonendod

UOIUIA pue AlID ayoueoy ‘AIUnoD 8xouroy Wolj suoday [elourul4 [enuuy aAIsuUsyaIdwo) :92in0S

%S¥°0 00€C %0.L°0 V6T %S¥°0 00¢ 9€6'168'LT S00¢
%070 ¥90°C %090 (42" %070 6.1 L€G'SS0°9T 900¢
%S€0 88.L'T %.L¥'0 121 %S€0 LST TOL'OET'VT L00¢
%6¢°0 6ES'T %6€°0 TET %620 YET LGE'00TCT 800¢
%Yo 6.2'T %c€0 80T %Yo 11T ¥Z1'256'6 600¢
%910 9.6 %TC0 ¥8 %9T°0 68 GY1'GL9°L 0TO0C¢
%000 - %000 - %000 - - T10¢
%000 - %000 - %000 - - ¢10¢
%000 - %000 - %000 - - €10¢
%000 - %000 : %000 - : ¥10c

awoou| ende) Jad awoou| eyude) Jad awoau| ende) Jad spuog JEEYN
[euosiad JO  abfejusdisad  [euositad jo feuosiad Jo anuanay [eosi4
aleys e sy aleys e sy aleys e sy

UOIUIA K110 ayoueoy A&luno) ayoueoy

6 °lqel

(paupneun)

SIeaA [edsiq ua] 1seT
adAl Ag1ga@ BuipueisinQ Jo soley
Alloyiny 221n0say As|eA axoueoy

-57-



"Sp102a1 186png pue [eloueUl YHAY :82IN0S

‘spouad juanbasqns 0] Ajdde jou S20p JUBUBAOD BnNUBABI 3Y) YaNns Se pue TTOgZ ‘0 aung Buipua teak [easly ayl Buunp 1gap J1ayl pasealap Ajjny ALloyiny ayl
“Jeak [easly ay) 1o} sAeINo 2101 841 JO %,00T PUR 32IAISS 1gap J0IUSS a1 JO 940TT S! WUBUSAOD SNUBASI 8y 910N
€TZ'T6E'T 6.2'vv0'c 926°29/.'2 925'.18 000'026'T 16980¢2'Y 68T' 79’8 0T€'G/8 298'cS ¥98'G8¢ €GT'0EY'L S00¢
ri'99¢€'e 8€2'810°'E GZT'T/L'C GCT'T.L 0000002 182'28S'y 8969666 GG8'098 629'v 0SS'v20'T 7€6°'90T'8 900¢
T20'e88'C TS0'€€0’'e 6T€'2G.'C 61289 000'020°C ¥22'.T0'S 962°'€€6'0T GGG'e8L 2oT'ee 986'TTS'T €59'7T9'8 1,002
TV1'€6.L'C 7S0‘TE0'E ¥05'G5. ‘2 705009 000'GST'2 88C'Ei6'y €81°29.'0T 6617'926 6TE'S6T VET'9G2'T TEG'68E'8 800¢
GZe'6.9 ¥7€6'GE0'E 0v6'65.'C 0v6'60S 000'052'2 260°08S'S TG€'662'6 020268 ¥2.'2S ovv'0ES 19T1'028'L 600¢
006°T/9 T9S'0¥0'E IT'v9.L'C IT'60V 000'G5€e‘C 200'0%79'9 €91'25€'0T €09'286'T 08689 99z'eee ¥19°290'8 0TO0C
€2.'15¥'C ¥9€'0v6'8 ¥09'221'8 ¥09'2S€E 000'G2.'L 000'79T'9 180'29S'/T €09'78.'6 808'8 9T0'G6 099°'€29', TT0C
GGS'v0T'C - - - - 2€0'508'S /8G'609°Z - G00'0ST 0zz'sy 29E'TIV' L x¢T0C
(eTe'e82) - - - - 090°'2T2'8 LV1'€€6'L - - Zv8'ey G06°'068'L +ET0C
LT¥'909 - $ - $ - $ - $ T1.6'G95'. $ 88€'C.T'8 - - Z218'9 9/G6'62T'8 $ «T0C
sanuanay ERIINERS ERIINERS 1Sa1a1U] rediourid (uoneroaidap sanuanay Sanlasay awoou| awoou| sanuanay JEEIN
a|ge|reny 109Q %0TT 199Q [e101 Buipn|oxa) SS0I9 wouj SNOSUR||30SIA  1USBWISIAU| Bunesado [easi4
19N 1SS97 sasuadxg Ja)suel]
992IAJI8S 108d Bunesado
SS9

0T alqeL

(pa1pneun)
SIeaA [edsl4 ua] 1seT

abetanod anuanay pabpald
Alloyiny 221n0say As|[e/ axoueoy

o)
re)



sIsAjeuy 21LWOU02T |0 NBaINg ay) WOJJ elep aWodu| [euosiad pue uonejndod

VA ‘Wajes sapnjoul

UOIUIA pue A11D ayoueoy ‘Qluno) ayoueoy wol) suoday [eloueuld [enuuy aAlsuayaldwod  :92In0S
%S'S 88¢'cy 000°.L¥S'v86't TST'8 ¥T0¢
%6'G 889'0F 000'.¥S'786'Y 260'8 €T0C
%.L'S 998°6E 000°.L¥S'v86't 0cT'8 A4
%.'S GTE'6E 000°'T6.'T9S'V 8608 TT0C
%€E9 GTE'6E 000'T62'229'V V18, 0T0¢C
%9t GTE'6E 000°'T6.'T9S'V 9/8‘2 600¢
%8°C 6T0°TY 000'9T6'0G.'V G062 800¢
%9°'C vee'le 000°'T9.'€0E'Y 226, 1002
%8°C 8/6'GE 000°LET'8CT'V 28L', 900¢
%T'E €28've 000'0/6'G56'E 28L', 5002
aley awoou| awoou| uone|ndod IEETN
juswAojdwaun  euded lad [euosiad [eoasi4

UOIUIA

%S9 €9€TY 000'04S'TE0'Y €16'86 %2C'S 88¢'ey 000°.¥S'V86'Y €0.°26 ¥T0¢
%6°G €9€'TY 000'04G'TE0'Y 986 %8'S 88¢'ey 000‘.¥S'¥86'Y 9GZ‘€6 €T0C
%S9 €9€TY 000'04S'TE0'Y 90¢'.6 %9°G 88¢'ey 000°L¥S'V86'Y 18926 fANI4
%69 ST1Z'ov 000'82£'688'E 90¢'.6 %.'S 889°01 000‘T6.T9S'¥ 9/£'C6 TT0C
%L 0TT'sE 000°28T'T69°'E 2¢0°/6 %€E9 GTE'6E 000°'T62CL9'V TT0'T6 0TO0C
%L 80T'.E 000'8E¥'009°E 287'v6 %9t GTE'6E 000‘T6.T9S'¥ 19806 6002
%6°E 9/2'8¢ 000¢e'299°' v€.€6 %8°C 6T0°TY 000°9T6°0S.'V 0206 800¢
%Z'E 112'9¢ 000'ceg'ery'e 8170°€6 %9°'C vee'le 000°T9.°€0E'Y 20606 1002
%E'E 060°ce 000'229'8TT'E 7666 %8¢ 8/6'GE 000°2ET'82T'V 28106 900¢
%/.'€ 69T'CE 000°2€8'G/6'C T1/9'C6 %T'E €28've 000'0/.6'GS6'E 69768 S00¢
ey awoou| awoou| uonejndod arey awoou| + 9woou| uone|ndod ea
juswAojdwaun  eude) Jad [euosiad juswAojdwaun  euded lad [euosiad [easi4

TT 8lqel

A0 ayjoueoy

uolnewJojul aiydeisbowaq

(paupneun)
SJeaA [edsiq ua] 1se

Auno) ayoueoy

Al1oyiny 821nosay As|eA axyoueoy

-59-



+000'T arenld 0T - - - yiompaN Buiddoys awoH
666-00S aleAlld 6 - - - *0u| “edlsWY JO sanljioeo [ealpa
666-00S 9leAld 8 - - - sJalnjoeinueiN MIA
+000'T arenld T - - - Wa1sAS YieaH uoljued
+000T dleAlld 9 6617-05¢ aleAld 0T Sllex3 111
- - - 661-05¢ 9leAlld 6 029paN
- - - 661-05¢ 9leAlld 8 uewemm
+000'T areAlld G 666-00S aleAlld . Auedwo) aouelinsu| arels||y
- - - 666-00S alenld 9 Alunwwo) uswainay diyspuaiH
- - - 666-00S aleAlld q 191U8D AIan02ay pue ale) plaiyoly
+000'T arenlld 14 666-005 aleAld 14 196013
+000'T JN0D [ed07] L +000'T JN0D [ed07] € ayoueoy Jo Alunod
+000'T areAlld e +000'T aleAlld 2z (einoyoepn Allawiloy) Jswua) suoneladQ obie s|lap
+000'T JN0D [ed07] 4 +000'T JN0D [ed07] T s|0oyas Alunod axoueoy
saa/oldw3 diysisump Nuey saakoldw3 diysiaumo Nuey 19Aoldw3
JO JaquinN 10 JaquinN
S00¢ ¥10¢

¢l 9l|qel

Al1oyiny 821nosay AsjeA a)oueoy

G00¢ pue $yT0Z SIesA [edsid
(paipneun)
sl1oAojdw3 redioulig

-60-



0e 0e 0e 8¢ 6¢ 6¢ 6¢ 8¢ 8¢ yx4
4 4 4 4 € € T 0 0 0
4 4 4 T T T T T T T
T T T T T T T T T T

VT VT ST ST VT VT 9T LT LT 9T
4 4 4 4 4 4 T T T T
€ € 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
- - - - - - 4 T T T
€ € € 4 4 4 T T T T
T T T T T T T T T T
4 4 4 4 € € € € € €

5002 9002 1,002 8002 6002 0T0C 1102 ¢10¢ €102 Y102
JeaA [edsiq

€T 3lqelL

(paypneun)
SIeaA [edsi4 ua] 1seT
ALAINOY 3|qelynuap| Aq seakojdw3 jo JlaqunN
Alioylny 821n0say Aa|eA axoueoy

3oog 186png vHAY :92In0S
seako|dw3 [e10L

Jaloge]
olueyaa|N uawdinbg
doueULBlUIERI [BIBUSS pue Bulp|ing
siojesadQ uswdinbg
slojesadQ ajeas
siosinladng

Buiresado

Ale19199S aAensIuILPY

1eISISSY SAlRNSIUIWLPY

aoueUl

Wawaleue elauss
uone.IsIuIWpPY

-61-



TO8'E0E'T
80'29
ZES'TYT
082'c

Ge
14
SS
SS
14

62v'L2y

18L'0v
G/S

[4ANG)

%Z6'6
187'0VT
S9
€9
v26
TEG'ET

Y¥6'SST

$

B A H B SR

N

G2G'619'T
90'8S
8GG'0ST
€6G'C

S€
14
SS
SS
14

YEE'TOY

980'6€
€€S

8vv's

%¢cZ8'TT
96L'6YT
TET'Y
68L
9L,
Z6E'VT

¥88'69T

$

h B H B S

N

8CL'€6L'T
¥9'95
¥65'SST
YA

Ge
14
e
e
14

€52'901
G8e'/E
619
055’8

%L2'9T
9LL'7ST
€86'vT
el
€19
EVL'ET

898781

$

h B H B R

SYS'2LL'T
€0'8S
€8/'/ST
6TL'C

Ge
14
SS
SS
14

899'621
665'8€
TLG'T
YIT'6

%1v'6
YST'LST
TC
108
691
TEO'ST

Z8Yr'ELT

N

222'000'C
6'6S
086'L¥T
691'C

=t
14
SS
SS
14

626'9Ey
€6v'8E
T2S'T
6.5'6

%126
Y6 LYT
L18'T
08.

80
668'TT

L5¥'29T

$

N B H B S

¥89'909'T
90°€9
TI6'TST
60v'C

Ge
14
SS
SS
14

YYT'9Ey
058'9¢
T08'T
6116

%Iv'L
€9/2'TST
6€
Sov
9Tv
v62'TT

L16'€9T

N

$ 166'/89'T
8T'99
8zy'vrT
912'C

S€
14
SS
SS
14

B A H B SR

$  T/8'CEV
LST'SE
299'T
96.'8

%ET' L
Y9L'vYT
4

[4=14

V1€
TSS'0T

€88'SST

$

A BB S

N

L¥0'2S8'T
26'v9
990'6ET
[44%4

Ge
14
SS
SS
14

150'86€
¥82'LE
€68'T
ZLY'6

%IT'8
TYT'ovT
144
96¢
8¢¢
L€8'TT

905'2ST

$

h A H B SR

N

128'16L'T
6T'99
8vy'SyT
1€2'C

S€
14
SS
SS
14

€€9'08¢
009°'07
TSP'T
9.0'0T

%C9'TT
259'SYT
L2
8€¢
0T
02.'8T

108791

h B H B S

N

Z10'SE6'T
08'179
60€'9YT
852'C

=t
Ly
1S
1S
Ly

¥2ZE'06€
Try'oe
L6€'T
020'6

%SV,
L19'8VT
Ly
ST€
18T
LOV'TT

€5'09T

Sp1023aJ AoyIny 82IN0say As||eA ayoueoy :92InN0S

h B H B R

S00¢

VT 3lgeL

900¢

L00¢

800¢

600¢

0T0C

T10C

(paypneun)
SIBaA [e9SI4 U] 1seT
sloedipu| [eude) pue Bunelado
Alloyiny 821nosay As|je/ ayoueoy

¢10¢e

€10¢

102

S3JS UONDI||0D JO JaquinN

SANS panIWIad uado Jo Jaquiny

S3NS PaNIWIAd JO JaquInN
sioyedipu| [ended

1500 Buiddiys
abelany
abeuuo]
sleojey
Suo} ul pauodsuel] alsepn Jedjiey

arey 9ISe/ POOM

aley [enuspisay

arey arenlld

arey [ellawwo)

aley rediounpy
saa4 [esodsig

sa94 [esodsiq
suonoesuel |
(unoD) saurL
abeuuo]
fesodsiq a1Se/ [enuapisay

pajokday Juadlad
pajipue
(siadedsmau ‘sse|b ‘preogpured ‘sauaneq) Jayl0
salllL
e’
poom
(anoge [e103 sjenba) suo) ul pajoAoay sfelareln

SU0] Ul paAIBday d1se\

-62-



COMPLIANCE SECTION




ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Members of the Board
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Roanoke, Virginia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards,
and Commissions issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia the financial
statements of the business-type activities of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 2, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Roanoke Valley
Resource Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Roanoke
Valley Resource Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified.

Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified. We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses, as item 2014-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s Response to Findings

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

{M, c%wuu, 4@5&&'@4—

Blacksburg, Virginia
September 2, 2014



Roanoke Valley Resource Authority

Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Section | - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

2014-001

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Management's
Response:

The Authority lacks proper segregation of duties over billing and collections.

A key concept of internal controls is the segregation of duties. No one employee
should have access to both accounting records and related assets.

The Authority's limited number of staff does not allow them to properly segregate
duties.

There is more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial
statements will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal controls over
financial reporting.

Limited number of staff has precluded the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority from
segregating key duties related to billings and collections. Currently, the Authority
does not plan on hiring additional personnel to address the aforementioned condition
as same is not considered cost-effective.





